
Secret Invasion Episode Guide
Episodes 001–006

Last episode aired Wednesday July 26, 2023

©
w
w
w
.
d
i
s
n
e
y
p
l
u
s
.
c
o
m

www.disneyplus.com


© 2023 www.imdb.com

© 2023 www.disneyplus.com © 2023 www.
geekgirlauthority.com

The summaries and recaps of all the Secret Invasion episodes were downloaded from https://www.imdb.com and
https://www.disneyplus.com and https://www.geekgirlauthority.com and processed through a perl program to
transform them in a LATEX file, for pretty printing. So, do not blame me for errors in the text !

This booklet was LATEXed on August 15, 2023 by footstep11 with create_eps_guide v0.69

www.imdb.com
www.disneyplus.com
www.geekgirlauthority.com
www.geekgirlauthority.com
https://www.imdb.com
https://www.disneyplus.com
https://www.geekgirlauthority.com


Contents

Season 1 1
1 Resurrection . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
2 Promises . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
3 Betrayed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
4 Beloved . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
5 Harvest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
6 Home . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

Actor Appearances 25



Secret Invasion Episode Guide

II



Season One





Secret Invasion Episode Guide

Resurrection

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Wednesday June 21, 2023
Writer: Kyle Bradstreet, Brian Tucker
Director: Ali Selim
Show Stars: Samuel L. Jackson (Nick Fury), Ben Mendelsohn (Talos), Kingsley Ben-

Adir (Gravik), Killian Scott (Pagon), Samuel Adewunmi (Beto), Dermot
Mulroney (President Ritson), Richard Dormer (Agent Prescod), Emilia
Clarke (G’iah), Olivia Colman (Sonya Falsworth), Don Cheadle (James
’Rhodey’ Rhodes)

Guest Stars: Cobie Smulders (Maria Hill), Martin Freeman (Agent Everett Ross),
Uriel Emil (Poprischchin), Tony Curran (Derrik), Irmena Chichikova
(Kreega), Andrei Nova (Russian Man), Ben Peel (Brogan), Michael
Epp (Ruben Seiner), Mihai Arsene (Drunk Russian), Natallia Buly-
nia (Russian Mother), Bebe Massey (Young Russian Girl), Mark Lewis
(Zirksu), Eugenia Caruso (Taxi Driver), Irina Kara (Russian Profes-
sional Woman), Zsuzsa Magyar (Russian Bartender), Jack Baldwin
(Nigel’s MI6 Partner), Grace Boyle (White House Aid), Alex Batare-
anu (Faux Gate Guard 1), Adriana Grigoriev (Faux Gate Guard 2),
James Macnaughton (Pod Security Skrull), Cain Aiden (Workman),
Electra Allen (Russian Passerby), Billy Clements (La Selva Guard),
Jack Gouldbourne (Nuro), Andy M Milligan (Russian Spy), Marvin
Montoute (Shop Owner), Jeska Pike (Secret Service), Ventsislav Yankov
(FSB Commander)

Summary: Nick Fury learns of a clandestine invasion of Earth by Skrulls.

In an alleyway, Everett Ross tells some-
one on the phone not to move. He tosses
the phone away. Then he pulls a gun
from an ankle holster and cocks it before
tucking it into his jacket. In voiceover,
Agent Prescod says to imagine a world
where information isn’t trustworthy. "So-
ciety starts to fray." We can only trust
those close to us. But what if those we
trust aren’t who we thought they were?

Prescod posits that five global terror-
ist strikes were actually all false flag op-
erations by Skrulls to sow worldwide dis-

cord. He recaps the role Skrulls played in Captain Marvel, set 30 years earlier. Carol Danvers
and Fury promised the Skrulls a new planet. But Prescod says now the Skrulls want Earth.

Ross says there’s only a handful of Skrulls on Earth, so they couldn’t undertake an operation
of that scale. Prescod insists there could be tens of thousands and Ross wouldn’t know. Ross
confirms some of Prescod’s facts but remains skeptical. He says Skrull contact comes through
Fury, so they’re allies. Fury’s on S.A.B.E.R., and Ross needs evidence to bring him to Earth.

Prescod offers Ross a tablet and says it’s the attack that will set the world on fire. He paces
as Ross reads it. Prescod says he doesn’t know who to trust anymore. Ross says he’ll give the
information to Fury. But after a tense moment, Prescod jumps him.
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Ross shoots Prescod in the chest. He leaves the building and heads down an alley. He calls
Agent Maria Hill and requests an extract. Hill directs him to a location six blocks east. But an
armed figure begins pursuing Ross through the streets.

Ross is struck by a car but keeps running. The pursuit leads to the rooftops. Ross attempts to
jump across an alleyway but doesn’t make it. Injured, he crawls across the ground. Hill arrives
just as Ross’s pursuer does.

But the pursuer reveals himself to be Talos. "Ross" dies and is revealed to be a Skrull. Hill
says, "He was one of you." Talos replies, "No, he’s one of them."

A dark forest is interrupted by a descending beam of light. A figure emerges from the light.
This is revealed to be Fury. He watches his shuttle ascend. Then he tests the ground with his
boots. He’s illuminated by headlights. It’s Hill. They embrace.

The pair arrives at an apartment. Fury meets Talos upstairs. He’s standing beside a plant
from the Skrull homeworld. His wife Soren brought it everywhere with her. The plant has adapted
along the journey. Fury says he’s sorry about Soren to Talos. Talos says Soren worried it would
take something like this to bring him back, and she was right.

Talos tells Fury the Skrulls have been helping him to ensure he’d help them. But since the
Blip he’s been different. He’s disappeared. Furthermore, Talos and Soren’s daughter G’iah also
disappeared. Talos explains she’s young and angry about not having a home. Further, Talos was
kicked off the Skrull Council and exiled. Meanwhile, Gravik took Fury’s disappearance person-
ally.

Gravik is the newest member of the Council. Hill explains he preys on the rage of young
disenfranchised Skrulls. Because Skrulls are immune to radioactivity and the country has many
abandoned nuclear plants, many of them are hidden in Russia. The catch is that the plant
locations aren’t on a map. Hill found Prescott’s evidence on "Ross": schematics for a dirty bomb.
The bomb will be used for a false flag operation, ostensibly carried out by an American anti-
Russia group. Prescott’s theory is that the Skrulls are attempting to start a war. It’s an existential
threat to humanity. Fury says he’s going for a walk. Talos states he’ll stand out walking in Russia
at night.

At the White House, James Rhodes informs U.S. President Ritson that Fury has left S.A.B.E.R.
The President says that’s unacceptable. They pass portraits of Richard M. Nixon and Ronald
Reagan. Rhodes says they intercepted a message from Hill to Fury. While it hasn’t been decoded,
they know the pair are friends. Since Rhodes can’t reach them, they’re AWOL. The President tells
Rhodes to deal with it.

In Moscow, Fury receives increasingly paranoid stares from other pedestrians. They speak
untranslated Russian. Then, Fury is shoved into a van by several thugs. In the next scene, his
hood is removed to reveal Sonya Falsworth and a room filled with ticking clocks. She dismisses
the thugs. While she offers him a drink, she only gives him the cheap stuff in retaliation for
"destroying her flat."

Sonya asks what Fury is doing in Moscow. He replies he’s trying to stop the Skrull invasion.
She points out he knows the rebel leader and Fury corrects that he knew him. Sonya asks if he
came down from S.A.B.E.R. because he feels responsible. Fury asks her about a heist at a black
market weapons storage facility in Kazakhstan a few days prior. She says she hasn’t heard about
it, and he says she’s lying.

But she counters that the Snap changed him. Undermined his confidence. Fury points out
that he has 30 years of experience with Skrulls. Sonya asks if he’s trying to partner with her. She
says the fact that her mediocre bagmen caught him proves he’s not up for it. She offers to have
the thugs drop him off and he says he can walk. He’s left a spy camera in her office.

A figure approaches a gate. He’s hailed by two guards. A vehicle pulls up. G’iah gets out of
the car and tells him to take his "natural form." He’s revealed to be a Skrull and granted access.
She welcomes him to the secret Skrull settlement.

In the car, she asks him if he’s hungry and offers him some Skrull food. She says they grow
Skrull food, drink Skrull wine, and wear Skrull skins. She says whatever dangers he weathered
to get there, they were worthwhile. They arrive at the settlement, which is close to an abandoned
nuclear power plant. It is filled with over 500 Skrulls of all ages, with only some with human
appearances.

Not everyone is a warrior, but those who do get to leave while the others remain on the
compound. The warriors keep human forms to decrease the likelihood they’re spotted. G’iah
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enters a door, behind which she says is "victory."
Inside, the room is filled with lab equipment. A Skrull swears allegiance before taking the

appearance of a human soldier. Then the soldier is locked into a device that allows the Skrull to
"take his mind."

The camera in Sonya’s office broadcasts to Fury in his apartment. He makes popcorn as
he agrees with Sonya that he wouldn’t have come back to Earth without good cause. Sonya
postulates that a certain individual will provide the bomb. Fury says they should visit the broker,
incapacitating the MI6 operatives if necessary. Fury says they’re not just in a war with Gravik
but also with Sonya. She favors a scorched Earth policy.

In a canteen, Gravik puts sugar cubes into his tea. A soldier informs him that Fury is back
on Earth. Gravik says they "go tomorrow" and won’t stop until Earth is theirs. The soldier gives
G’iah money and instructs her to deliver it to the bomb maker.

G’iah arrives in Moscow. The streets are decorated with statues of Russian nesting dolls.
G’iah dodges MI6. Meanwhile, Talos incapacitates an agent. G’iah reaches the broker. 136-year-
old Talos uses his strength to rip a lock off a gate.

The broker tells Talos and Fury the entrance is on the main street. Talos says they aren’t
customers. Fury says they want answers. On the street, Hill spots G’iah. She initiates a foot
pursuit. Meanwhile, Fury calls the broker in a lie. He says not to lie again.

The broker pretends not to know what the phrase "dirty bomb." But instead of Fury shooting
him, Talos begins fighting him. The broker demonstrates considerable strength. Fury aims at the
broker but Talos says it’s his fight and calls Fury off. Talos asks where the bombs are and the
broker accuses him of betraying his own people. The broker gets the upper hand but Fury shoots
him. The dead broker returns to Skrull form. Talos tells Fury, "I said no," and Fury leaves.

Elsewhere, Hill pursues G’iah. Hill follows her through a door at the end of an alley. Inside
she is confronted by G’iah and they begin to fight. G’iah incapacitates Hill but Talos arrives and
takes up the pursuit. He corners G’iah and Talos identifies her as his daughter. He tells her to
give him the bombs. Talos says this isn’t what her mother would have wanted. G’iah says her
mom doesn’t know what she wants. Talos reveals Soren is dead.

G’iah asks how. Talos tells her to ask the people she works with. He says he’ll protect her if
she turns over the bomb. But she says he can’t protect anyone. She escapes to the streets and
collapses in an alleyway to cry.

Fury arrives at a bar and is told to wait. He’s seemingly recognized. Fury orders a round
for himself and the man. Then he heads to Hill’s table and tells her the Cold War didn’t go hot
because of spies like him buying shots. Hill says it’s good to have Fury back. She asks why he
abandoned Earth. He says he was building out S.A.B.E.R.

Hill says they traditionally tell the truth during their chess games. Fury concedes he had a
crisis of faith. Hill asks why he came back, and Fury says it followed him up there. He says he
owed it to Talos. Hill asks if he’s sure he isn’t talking about someone else.

Hill asks if he’s going to move and Fury says he hasn’t decided. But Hill says he’s worried
because he used to always be three steps ahead. Fury says she called him. Hill says only at the
request of Talos. His radio silence sent a message. Hill says he isn’t ready for the threat that’s
out there. She says he was never the same after the Blip. She says his uncertain footing is going
to get someone hurt.

Later, Fury lies in Bed and remembers dying because of the Snap. Elsewhere, Gravik looks
out a window. G’iah enters a room and hands the bombs to the soldier. G’iah says someone was
waiting for her. She suggests postponing the strike. The soldier tells her that thanks to her, they
have the bait. G’iah looks distraught.

A blonde woman hails a cab. When the cab arrives at its location, the passenger is revealed
to be G’iah. She has agreed to a secret meeting with Talos. G’iah is angry about Soren’s death.
But Talos underscores that Soren died while G’iah was working for her killer. Talos says she has
one chance to save herself. G’iah says the attack is planned for tomorrow, Unity Day. She says
Gravik knows they’ll be there. Talos tells her Soren would be proud of her for meeting him. G’iah
says there will be three couriers, but she’ll mark each bag with infrared spray. Talos shares the
intel with Fury and Hill.

The next day, Hill, Talos, and Fury track the couriers’ bags with infrared scanning assisting.
However, they miss the pass. They begin to chase. The crowds render the task difficult. Fury
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follows a familiar girl with a rainbow ball. But it turns out to be the man from the bar — or
rather, a Skrull.

Fury continues to pursue. The Skrull in question is Gravik. Meanwhile, Hill discovers the
backpacks are decoys. Gravik clicks the device and sets off explosions. Panic envelopes the
crowd. Fury aims his gun at Gravik but his quarry escapes into the crowd.

Then "Fury" approaches Hill. He hails her and then shoots her as she approaches. The real
Fury aims at Skrull Fury, but the imposter escapes. Fury holds Hill as she dies. Someone pulls
him off the body. A lingering shot of the corpse suggests she wasn’t a Skrull.
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Promises

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Wednesday June 28, 2023
Teleplay: Brian Tucker
Story: Brant Englestein, Brian Tucker
Director: Ali Selim
Show Stars: Samuel L. Jackson (Nick Fury), Ben Mendelsohn (Talos), Kingsley Ben-

Adir (Gravik), Killian Scott (Pagon), Samuel Adewunmi (Beto), Dermot
Mulroney (President Ritson), Richard Dormer (Agent Prescod), Emilia
Clarke (G’iah), Olivia Colman (Sonya Falsworth), Don Cheadle (James
’Rhodey’ Rhodes)

Guest Stars: Cobie Smulders (Maria Hill), Charlayne Woodard (Priscilla), Katie
Finneran (Rosa), Irmena Chichikova (Kreega), Saverio Buono (Italian
Prime Minister), Seeta Indrani (Shirley Sagar), Alex Romashov (Rus-
sian Soldier #1), Christopher Goh (Jack Hyuk-Bin), Giampiero Ju-
dica (NATO Sec. Gen. Caspani), Vladimir Kolishkin (Butcher), Ben Peel
(Brogan), Nina Anderson (British Reporter), Chiraz Aïch (French Pres-
ident), Anna Madeley (Pamela Lawton), Michael Epp (Ruben Steiner),
Mark Bazeley (Victor Dalton), Paul Huntley-Thomas (Business News
Anchor), Luke J I Smith (Skrull Guard), Michael Amariah (British
Newscaster), Augustina Seymour (Staffer #1), Irena Tyshyna (Fash-
ionable Woman), Alex Skarbek (FSB Commander #2), Lucas Per-
saud (Young Skrull Gravik), Charlotte Baker (Soren), Kate Braithwaite
(Skrull Soren), Juliet Stevenson (Maria Hill’s Mum), Jack Gouldbourne
(Nuro), Ventsislav Yankov (FSB Commander)

Summary: Fury grapples with past and present.

Talos (in human guise) addresses the
group. He acknowledges how difficult the
situation has been for the Skrulls. He
says those who braved the journey to
Earth did so for Fury. Fury steps up and
tells the assembled Skrulls that if they
will pledge to take care of his home, he
and Carol Danvers will work to find them
a new home.

The Skrulls present begin taking hu-
man form, with Soren going first. "You
keep your word, I’ll keep mine," Fury
says. A shot of young Gravik cuts to

present-day Gravik. He’s in the midst of the chaos in the wake of the Unity Day attack. Gravik
and G’iah get into a vehicle together. A man pulls Fury off of the corpse of Maria Hill and puts
him in a van. The man is actually Talos.

A train chugs through the Russian countryside. A pair of soldiers knock on the door of a
cabin occupied by a woman. They hold up a picture of Fury and ask if she’s seen him. The
woman expresses her incredulity at the idea of a Black American on the train. She uses her
appearance to smooth the situation over and they leave. Inside, she is revealed to be Talos. Fury
emerges from the bathroom at his signal and asks if Talos has heard from G’iah yet.

Fury tells Talos a story about taking childhood train rides with his mother from Alabama
to Detroit. He says they had to ride in the colored car. The conditions were bad. Further, they
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weren’t allowed to use the dining car. Fury says he and his mother would play a game called "Tell
me something I don’t know." His mother used the game to uncover information he didn’t want to
share.

Fury asks Talos if he wants to play a few rounds. So Fury says "Tell me something I don’t know
about the destruction of the Skrulls." Talos says the million Skrulls left after the Kree invasion
fled. Fury asks about the Skrulls that fled. Talos says that they’re here. One million Skrulls are
on Earth. Every Skrull that isn’t in Emperor Dro’ge’s colony answered the call of Talos.

Talos says it was his only choice. He accuses Fury of abandoning the Skrulls to which he had
made commitments. Talos says he didn’t think Fury would come back. And when he did come
to Earth, he just wanted to leave again. Fury says that Talos knew how to get in touch with him,
but didn’t, because he wanted Fury to remain on the station.

Talos says he hopes that with Fury’s help, humans and Skrulls can coexist. Fury says that
humans can’t coexist with each other. "There is not enough room or tolerance on this planet for
another species." The train has reached a station. Fury throws Talos out of the compartment.

In London, Hill’s coffin arrives. It is met by Hill’s mother, Elizabeth. As Hill’s coffin is loaded
into a United States plane, Elizabeth crosses the tarmac and confronts Fury. She asks how it
happened. Fury says it happened quickly. Elizabeth tells him not to give her platitudes.

Fury tells Elizabeth that Hill died in Moscow. He says someone set a trap. They wanted to
hurt Fury, so they hurt Hill. Elizabeth accuses Fury of being the reason Hill’s going home in a
box. She says that Hill would have followed Fury to the gates of Hell and back. She says not to
let Hill’s death be for nothing.

A montage of international news report clips discusses the Unity Day attack. An anchor re-
ports on impending retaliation from Russia. U.S. President Ritson calls "bull" on America being
involved in the attack. He says the attack has "false flag" written all over it.

In Moscow, G’iah and Garvick are driving. G’iah asks how he knew Fury would be there, and
Garvick says he’d only hoped. He says Fury is a shadow of himself, and he could have killed him.
But this would have only given him what he wanted. Garvick says he wants to get to the Council
meeting. Once they’ve arrived at the door, G’iah is forced to wait outside. Gravik leaves her with
a gun. And instructions to shoot the guard in the head if he isn’t out in an hour.

Inside, Gravik greets the Council. Members include the U.S. President, NATO Secretary Gen-
eral, the Italian Prime Minister, and several others. Gravik accepts an invitation to sit. He mocks
them for acting human. Gravik says he prefers dogs to humans. He has compelling supporting
arguments.

A councilmember says Gravik doesn’t seem to care that he’s caused so much destruction and
by extension endangered the Council. Gravik says Fury has betrayed his word and therefore
Gravik owes him nothing. He says he will take the Earth himself. He declares war and says he
isn’t going to lose this one. Gravik says there are no innocent humans anyway. He further states
he has considered the possibility that the Avengers return.

The Prime Minister supports Gravik. She nominates him to the post of Skrull General. The
NATO Secretary General blusters but quiets after a throat punch from the PM’s guard. All on
the Council but Shirley Sagar submit to Gravik. She says they did not end up homeless refugees
because they were unwilling to wage war, but because they were too willing.

Gravik sends Shirley away in peace and says she won’t be harmed. She passes G’iah and
leaves. Outside, she contacts Talos and informs him of the developments. Talos says to set up a
public meeting between him and Gravik.

Gravik leaves. G’iah follows him. They return to the compound at the abandoned nuclear
plant. Gravik is greeted as a hero. G’iah continues to follow him. He enters the secret lab seen in
the first episode. Inside, a scientist argues over a failure to execute a "harvest." There’s some talk
about limited DNA samples. The soldier questions Gravik’s leadership. The scientist dismisses
him. G’iah watches as an experiment begins.

Colonel James Rhodes attends an international emergency security summit in London. Rhodes
says he’s aware of allegations that Fury and Hill were in Moscow. He notes that would be in their
capacity as private citizens, if so. Rhodes is questioned on the photos of Fury and Hill they have.
He says they can’t trust the authenticity of Russian-supplied images but would be willing to have
U.S. experts examine them. The summit is skeptical of his responses.

Rhodes says he’s at the summit as a courtesy. He says the President is busy running the U.S.
And while the U.S. is sensitive to their concerns, he says, they have no evidence. So sensitivity is
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all they get. In the lobby, Fury calls his cell and proves he has eyes on him. Fury wants to meet.
Rhodes says they can get a drink after he’s done cleaning up Fury’s mess.

Fury arrives at the bar and is frisked by the security detail. He sits down at the table with
Rhodes. Rhodes says he’s tempted to turn him over to the Russians. Fury says he was there
trying to stop the attack. Rhodes says Fury’s involvement both set the stage for WWIII and
flipped their allies to "Team Russia." Fury asks how well Rhodes knows his security detail. He
suggests they could be Skrulls.

Rhodes has known about the Skrulls for fifteen years. The Pentagon was concerned they might
invade from inside. Fury says the invasion is happening. Rhodes suggests calling "our friends"
and Fury says that would result in them getting duplicated and turned into terrorists. Fury says
it is his war. Rhodes says he’s not doing it.

Rhodes says they protect the planet by protecting their seat at the table. Fury asks if Rhodes
forgot who helped get him that seat. Rhodes asks if Fury’s suggesting Rhodes owes him. Fury
says they owe each other. "Men who look like us don’t get promoted because of who our daddies
know," Fury says. "Every ounce of power we wrestle from the vice grip of the mediocre Alexander
Pierces who run this world was earned in blood. So let’s make the power mean something. Help
a brother out."

But Rhodes tells Fury to get in the car outside and go to the airport. Fury asks if he has travel
plans. Rhodes says he made them for him. He continues to imply that Fury is deluded to think
he can take on the problem himself. "You should know better than most," Rhodes says. "The
reason we wrestled this power from mediocre men who don’t look like us was not simply to turn
around and hand it to mediocre men who do." The point of power is to be uncompromising and
unsparing and to be able to unreservedly fire someone he admires.

Fury throws back his drink. He is incredulous that they sent Rhodes to fire him. Rhodes
says he volunteered. He says he earned the consequences because of his actions in Moscow. The
guard begins to take Fury away. But Fury disarms the guard. Rhodes says, "And you wonder
why you’re out." Fury replies, "I’m Nick Fury. Even when I’m out, I’m in." Outside, he collapses
on a bench in anguish.

Sylvia arrives at a butcher shop. The locked door poses no problem for her. She heads to the
cooler in back, where Brogan is being tortured. The man doing the torturing asks who Sylvia is.
She hands over a phone. The person on the line convinces the torturer to command his men to
leave and turn the prisoner over. Sylvia cuts off one of the prisoner’s fingers and it reverts to
Skrull form.

Elsewhere, G’iah accesses a computer. It seems to be a DNA data bank. There are records of
DNA for Doctor Dalton, Groot, Frost Beast, Cull Obsidian, and Extremis, all gathered on Earth.
Gravik asks what G’iah’s doing. She changes to a different subject and says she’s checking on
the status of their newest recruit. Gravik calls G’iah’s father a coward. Then he says their man
on the inside has located Brogan. He says they should go.

Meanwhile, Sylvia tells the prisoner that everyone starts to talk when their blood boils at
160 degrees centigrade. She injects him with the substance. He soon begins to feel (and visibly
display) the effects. Elsewhere, Gravik gets in a vehicle and departs. Syliva demands to know the
location of Gravik’s compound. The prisoner says Gravik keeps everything a secret.

She asks what secrets he doesn’t keep. The prisoner says Gravik’s building a machine. He
thinks it’s to make them stronger. She asks who is helping him by leading the science. He
says it’s a married couple. She demands a name. He finally gives the name "Dalton." Outside the
previous torturer’s crew begins to get shot. Gravik has arrived with backup. Sylvia says it sounds
like the prisoner’s lift has arrived.

G’iah leaves the new recruit in the car. Gravik takes out the opposition. Sylvia escapes through
the hatch. Gravik’s guard extracts Brogan. Brogan says he told her nothing but lies. But he’s
lying. Gravik says to take him to the car.

The Skrull crew is gathered in the car. Authorities have located their safe house. Gravik
wonders how they found it. Brogan whimpers in the backseat. In the forest, Gravik orders G’iah
to pull over. The soldier opens the door and tells Brogan they’re almost home. Pete takes Brogan
a small distance from the road and executes him. Then he returns to the car. Gravik observes
G’iah’s reaction.

Elsewhere, Fury arrives at his own safe house. He gets in a vehicle stored there and begins to
drive. He arrives at a suburban house. Inside, a Skrull is cooking. Fury uses his keys to unlock
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the door and enter the house. The books on the shelf are organized by color.
Fury enters the kitchen. The Skrull has adopted the guise of (or is) Priscilla Fury. She asks

if Fury is forgetting something. He retrieves a wedding ring and puts it on. She says it’s almost
better. The pair embrace and begin to kiss.
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Betrayed

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Wednesday July 05, 2023
Writer: Roxanne Paredes, Brian Tucker
Director: Ali Selim
Show Stars: Samuel L. Jackson (Nick Fury), Ben Mendelsohn (Talos), Kingsley Ben-

Adir (Gravik), Killian Scott (Pagon), Samuel Adewunmi (Beto), Dermot
Mulroney (President Ritson), Richard Dormer (Agent Prescod), Emilia
Clarke (G’iah), Olivia Colman (Sonya Falsworth), Don Cheadle (James
’Rhodey’ Rhodes)

Guest Stars: Charlayne Woodard (Priscilla), David Bark-Jones (Bob Fairbanks),
Katie Finneran (Rosa), Christopher McDonald (Chris Stearns), Irmena
Chichikova (Kreega), Christopher Goh (Jack Hyuk-Bin), Giampiero Ju-
dica (NATO Sec. Gen. Caspani), Anna Madeley (Pamela Lawton), Alas-
dair Noble (Zachary Fairbanks), Mark Bazeley (Victor Dalton), Harry
Burton (Submarine Captain), Peter Sandys-Clarke (London Banker),
Lydia Depres (Hostess), James Adler (Security Man #1), Mark Lewis
(Zirksu), Natasha Patel (Jogging Woman), Osian Roberts (Mustached
Man), Daniel Stockton (Businessman), Pavel Douglas (Older Man),
Meya Brumell (Diner Waitress), Tony McCarthy (Alien)

Summary: Fury uncovers a rebel Skrull plot.

The episode opens with three Skrulls
preparing for a mission at their base.
Beto expresses some doubt, but his asso-
ciate assures him they’re fighting for the
future. They each receive a dossier with
a picture of a soldier on it. Meanwhile,
Gravik takes in his machine. He’s joined
by the other members of the Skrull coun-
cil. Gravik explains he sent three officers
to infiltrate the Royal Navy to and exe-
cute a strike on a U.N. target. This will in-
evitably summon Earth’s heroes. Gravik
states that to counter them, the Skrull

must become super themselves.
Gravik says they no longer just change faces but also change powers. He describes them as

"Super Skrulls" and says they’ll be weapons of mass destruction. With the humans at war with
themselves, the Skrulls will take over. Gravik invites them to join in the extinction of the human
race.

Nick Fury arrives at a diner in the rain. He orders a Black coffee. A woman in a booth is
revealed to be Varra, AKA Priscilla "Cilla" Fury. He asks whose face she has adopted. She says
that depends on where this goes. Fury says they can’t be involved romantically because of their
profession. She counters that they don’t officially exist.

In the present day, Chris Sterns is on TV. The right-wing news program warns viewers to
stock up on guns and bottled water because it looks like WWIII. Cilla turns it off and asks how
Fury can watch it. Fury says a broken clock is right twice a day. Cilla asks what transpired to
bring him to Earth. Fury claims he retired but may take up revenge. He asks if she’s been in
touch with Gravik. He says he needs to know who she became in his absence. She says that she
became a widow and became herself.
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Her phone rings, and she answers it. Cilla says she doesn’t have that information at hand.
Fury asks if it was important, and she says no. As soon as she leaves the room, Fury looks at
Cilla’s phone.

At the Skrull base, Gravik wakes G’iah. He wants to talk about Brogan and how the cops
knew about the location. Brogan didn’t know. G’iah suggests Brogan made a desperate educated
guess. She says in his position, she would have lied. She’s a good liar. Gravik seemingly accepts
this and then tells her he’ll see her early tomorrow. He says she’s coming with him.

Gravik and G’iah get off a plane. Then they begin traveling by car. Gravik says her father Talos
called for a parlay. He says Talos wants to talk about her. They arrive at the location, and Gravik
gets out. G’iah inputs a coded message into a cell phone. Soon, Gravik and Talos are meeting
among the portraits. Gravik discusses 1930’s Statesmen of World War I by Sir James Guthrie.
He says it highlights the difference between statemen, whose stories are told in ink, and soldiers,
whose stories are told in blood. Gravik says he chooses blood all day long.

Talos says it isn’t just Gravik’s blood, and Gravik agrees. Soon they’re seated at a table in a
crowded restaurant. Talos says he wants him to stand down and stop murdering innocents. The
conversation turns to G’iah. Gravik says Talos should be grateful he hasn’t sent her back in a
body bag. Talos lunges at him. As he does so, every other patron transforms into Gravik.

Talos says Gravik will take their people to the edge of extinction. Gravik says to look at how
humans treat each other. Talos says humans are at their most formidable when threatened by
a common foe. Gravik asks if he’s forgotten how Skrulls work. Talos says he’ll reveal Gravik’s
intent to humanity’s leaders. Gravik says this will make Talos the author of Skrull extinction.
Talos says the humans will recognize not all Skrulls are "infected."

Gravik says G’iah stays with him, then. Talos stabs Gravik’s hand with the knife and chokes
him. He says G’iah’s name should stay out of his mouth going forward. After Talos leaves, Gravik
heals his hand with a healing factor.

When Talos gets outside, he bumps into a stranger. A phone falls to the ground. The stranger
hands it back to him. Gravik returns to the car. Soon Talos is eating in a pub. He’s approached by
Fury. Talos says Fury has a lot of audacity to ask for his help after their interaction the preceding
day. Fury says he has a line on a rebel Skrull who is high up in the government and currently in
London. Talos asks what Fury wants from him. He makes Fury say, "Help me, Talos. Because I
am useless without you."

Soon the pair are traveling in a car. Talos explains that G’iah handed off info to him using a
burner phone. Fury identifies "Neptune" as a British submarine. He contacts Sonya Falsworth
and tells her the Skrulls plan to use it to attack the U.N. delegation and start WWIII. Falsworth
wants an apology for the bug he placed on her owl statue, now named after Fury (and with
an eyepatch). She says she’s trying to figure out who leaked information about the butcher shop
interrogation in the previous episode. However, Fury does get the Neptune captain’s name, photo,
and location.

Robert Fairbanks lives near Naval Command HQ. In the car, Talos questions the relationship
between dogs and humans. Fury says he’s been cleaning up after Talos for decades. Talos sees
it differently. He says Fury didn’t begin ascending the ranks until Talos and nine of his people
became his spy network. Talos takes credit for Fury’s information and successes at S.H.I.E.L.D.

Fury and Talos infiltrate the base but are very quickly made. They dispatch several soldiers.
Talos passes a room where a child is occupied with a video game. Fury gets a call from Talos over
the radio, calling him to the end of the hall. But because Talos calls him Nick, Fury knows it’s a
trap. He arrives in the room with the kid held hostage. Talos is being held hostage by Fairbanks.

Fairbanks says he’ll release Talos when Fury releases the child. But Fury says it isn’t a
negotiation. The hostages are released. Fury asks Fairbanks what he’s working on. A map shows
a U.N. plane crossing the Atlantic. Under the ocean, Neptune is moving into range. The crew is
incredulous at the order to attack U.N. Flight 819.

Fury and Talos try to talk Fairbanks out of the attack. Fairbanks says Talos is a shell of his
former self. Fury asks why Talos doesn’t call in a missile strike. Talos says only Fairbanks knows
the code. Fury shoots Fairbanks in the thigh. On the Neptune, they prepare to launch. Fairbanks
asks if G’iah is the "spineless traitor." Talos kills Fairbanks with a bullet to the chest.

Talos calls G’iah and says he needs the launch termination password for Fairbanks. G’iah
subsequently knocks out two guards as she breaks into the area where the Skrulls keep their
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prisoners. G’iah reaches the real Fairbanks. A screen shows the subject’s memories. G’iah gives
the code to Talos. He instructs her to run. The launch is aborted.

G’iah seemingly escapes on a motorcycle. Fury asks Talos why he isn’t with Gravik when
he agrees with him. Talos says he isn’t with Gravik because he’s with Fury. G’iah’s escape is
interrupted by a vehicle driven by Gravik. G’iah claims she has to extract the soldiers from the
failed mission. Gravik says it wasn’t a failure, as the objective was identifying the traitor. He pulls
a gun on G’iah. G’iah asks if he’s a leader of Skrulls or their worst enemy. Gravik shoots her, and
she apparently dies, returning to Skrull form.

Back at her house, Cilla pulls keys from a jar. She seems to be watched and followed as she
takes a train. Soon a banker opens a lock box for her before giving her some time alone. Inside
the box is an envelope containing a gun. Her phone rings, and a voice instructs, "St. James
Church, one hour." She says she needs to speak to Gravik, but the voice says she’s talking to
him.
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Beloved

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Wednesday July 12, 2023
Writer: Brian Tucker
Director: Ali Selim
Show Stars: Samuel L. Jackson (Nick Fury), Ben Mendelsohn (Talos), Kingsley Ben-

Adir (Gravik), Killian Scott (Pagon), Samuel Adewunmi (Beto), Dermot
Mulroney (President Ritson), Richard Dormer (Agent Prescod), Emilia
Clarke (G’iah), Olivia Colman (Sonya Falsworth), Don Cheadle (James
’Rhodey’ Rhodes)

Guest Stars: Nisha Aaliya (Rhodey Skrull / Raava), Charlayne Woodard (Priscilla),
Katie Finneran (Rosa), Michael Keogh (SAS Officer #1), Richard Tever-
son (Chief Of Staff)

Summary: Fury must make some hard sacrifices.

G’iah lies in the woods after being shot
by Gravik. In flashbacks, she uses the
machine to steal the thoughts of Doc-
tor Rosa Dalton. Then G’iah sets the Su-
per Skrull machine to "Extremis." In the
woods, G’iah is healed by the Extremis.
She gets up from the ground and re-
sumes her human form.

Paris, 2012 — At a bar Fury reunites
with Varra, aka Priscilla "Cilla" Fury. She
references a newspaper cover about the
Battle of New York from The Avengers
(2012). Cilla suspects Fury was involved,

which he implicitly confirms. The pair share a tender moment over the poem "Late Fragment" by
Raymond Carver.

Present day — Cilla is seated in the back of St. James Church. She is approached by "James
Rhodes". Cilla says Fury was fired, possibly by President Ritson. Rhodes claims credit. Then
he orders Cilla to kill Fury. Meanwhile, Fury uses electronic surveillance to eavesdrop on the
conversation. Rhodes says either Fury or Cilla will be "catching a bullet today." Cilla claims the
"old Fury" is gone and argues for sparing his life. Rhodes threatens her before leaving.

Elsewhere, Gravik and his soldiers load a plane with supplies. One of them questions G’iah’s
absence. Gravik states that she was the mole and has been taken care of. He underscores the
importance of making the impending operation resemble a Russian attack.

Talos sits beside G’iah on a park bench. G’iah asks Talos about his strategy for finding the
Skulls a home. Talos advocates for continuing to serve as an ally to Fury. He believes the "model
behavior" will eventually pay off. G’iah asks if he doesn’t want to live in his own skin. Talos
doubles down. G’iah calls him delusional. She says that’s now who they are, and it’s now who
she’s become. Then, she leaves.

Cilla arrives at her house to find Fury’s wedding ring still in the vase under a wall decorated
with theatrical masks. Fury is in the kitchen preparing tea. The pair share a tense conversation.
They each place their pistols on the table between them. Cilla reveals where she gained the visage
she adopted. Doctor Priscilla Davis had a secret congenital heart defect and was about to die.

Varra explained the situation to Davis. In exchange, Varra made three promises to the dying
originator: to bury Davis at sea, to continue to be a daughter to her parents and never to hurt
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Fury. Fury and Cilla exchange the lines from "Late Fragment" and then fire their weapons at one
another.

However, they both aim wide, sparing each other’s lives. Fury says they’ll be coming for her.
She says she’s a big girl and can take care of herself. Cilla asks if Fury would have loved him if
she’d been her true self. Before leaving, Fury says he guesses they’ll never know.

The Rhodes Skrull, Raava, takes a shower, resuming the form of Rhodes afterward. When
"Rhodes" leaves the shower, Fury waits at the table for him. Fury offers Rhodes a drink of ex-
pensive liquor, Pappy Van Winkle’s 23-Year-Old Family Reserve Bourbon. Fury makes a big deal
out of it. Then, he brings up the Skrull infiltration of the U.S. Government again. Rhodes is
dismissive. Fury asks for his job back.

In response, Rhodes reveals he has a video of Gravik (in Fury form) murdering Maria Hill.
Fury says that’s really Gravik. Rhodes mocks the idea of Fury using "the alien defense" at trial.
He takes the liquor from Fury and tells him to get out before he has him thrown out the window.

Fury and Talos sit in a car outside the hotel where Rhodes is staying. It is revealed that the
liquor was actually a liquid location tracker. Navigating around the protesters, Fury and Talos
follow Rhodes. Soon, Rhodes welcomes Ritson to the United Kingdom. Rhodes begins coaching
Ritson. However, Ritson smells the liquor on his breath and calls him out for it. The Presidential
motorcade departs with Rhodes a few cars behind Ritson.

As the motorcade travels through the countryside, Rhodes reports the location of Ritson to
Gravik. Soon a pair of helicopters attack the convoy. Ritson is trapped in an overturned car. The
helicopters are joined by vans full of Skrull soldiers who open fire on the convoy. The motorcade
shoots down one helicopter, but the resulting crash is destructive. Fury and Talos arrive in their
vehicle. Fury states they must rescue Ritson. He and Talos remove weapons from the car. Fury
uses one to take out the second helicopter. The wreckage stops just short of the car containing
Ritson.

One of Gravik’s soldiers spots Fury. Gravik uses Groot Super Skrull abilities to take out a
Secret Service Agent. U.K. reinforcements arrive. They help Fury and Talos reach Ritson. Talos
begins using his strength to punch through the bulletproof glass of Ritson’s vehicle. Talos is
shot by opposing forces. He begins to lose human form and return to Skrull form. One of the
reinforcement soldiers nearly shoots him. Fury is able to stop him in time. Talos eventually
shatters the glass.

Talos fully returns to Skrull form. Fury frees Ritson from the vehicle. Before carrying Ritson
to his car, Fury tells Talos to hang in there. The reinforcement soldier begins carrying Talos. After
Ritson has been deposited in Fury’s car, Fury realizes what’s going on. When the soldier refuses
to put Talos down, Fury fires at him. The soldier is revealed to be Gravik. Gravik stabs Talos,
who collapses. Fury shoots Gravik several more times, but he can heal himself with Extremis
abilities. Gravik escapes by motorcycle. Fury departs with Ritson. Talos remains, lying on the
battlefield.
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Harvest

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Wednesday July 19, 2023
Writer: Michael Bhim, Brian Tucker
Director: Ali Selim
Show Stars: Samuel L. Jackson (Nick Fury), Ben Mendelsohn (Talos), Kingsley Ben-

Adir (Gravik), Killian Scott (Pagon), Samuel Adewunmi (Beto), Dermot
Mulroney (President Ritson), Richard Dormer (Agent Prescod), Emilia
Clarke (G’iah), Olivia Colman (Sonya Falsworth), Don Cheadle (James
’Rhodey’ Rhodes)

Guest Stars: Cobie Smulders (Maria Hill), Charlayne Woodard (Priscilla), Katie
Finneran (Rosa), Tony Curran (Derrik), Irmena Chichikova (Kreega),
Jack Gouldbourne (Nuro), Michael Epp (Ruben Steiner), Mark Bazeley
(Victor Dalton), Jessica Martenson (Window Agent), Heidi Niemi (K9
Guard), Mark Lewis (Zirksu), Simon Smith (Finnish Man), Malcolm
James (British News Presenter), Tom Scurr (Nurse #1), Anna Wilson-
Jones (Female Surgeon), Tony Metcalfe (Male Surgeon), O-T Fagbenle
(Mason), Joe Macaulay (SIS Official 1), Christian Anthony Greenaway
(SIS Official 2)

Summary: Fury gathers his allies. Gravik deals with unrest.

Fury follows the gurney of U.S. Presi-
dent Ritson as it heads into the operat-
ing room. He tells the President it was not
the Russians. Fury further emphasizes
not trusting "James Rhodes" before he is
locked out for lack of clearance. On the
television screen in the lobby, the pres-
ence of Talos is used to link the attack
to the Skrulls. Fury pulls up a chair and
guards the hospital door with a gun.

Elsewhere, a vehicle carrying Gravik
and several of his Skrull soldiers arrive at
the abandoned nuclear plant where the

Skrulls have built their secret society. He orders his officers to be assembled. Pagon claims the
death of Talos as a victory. Gravik states the President was the target. Pagon questions why
Fury continues to live. According to Gravik, Fury knows the location of the Avengers’ DNA sam-
ples. But the locations they’ve checked so far have been inaccurate. Pagon asks whether Fury
ever trusted Gravik and, by extension, questions whether Gravik is worth trusting. Gravik uses
Super Skrull powers to kill Pagon. Gravik blames Varra, AKA Priscilla "Cilla" Fury, for Fury’s
presence at the attack. He dispatches a team to kill her. Beto looks concerned.

Gravik contacts "Rhodey". Raava is on the way to the hospital to kill Ritson. But Gravik
orders Ritson to be kept alive. He further states that Raava should ensure Ritson knows it wasn’t
Russians but Skrulls responsible for the attack. Raava arrives at the hospital and orders it to
be locked down. Fury soon has her at gunpoint. But she reveals that the footage of Fury killing
Maria Hill has already been leaked to the media. Raava promises this is just a preview of what
will come if Fury comes within 100 feet of Ritson again.

In London, Sonya Falsworth enters the office of Director Weatherby. He asks her if she really
thinks Skrulls could be everywhere. She puts a gun to his head. She asks the location of Doctor
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Rosa Dalton. Weatherby gives her lip, so she shoots him in the thigh. When security enters with
their weapons drawn, she states she’s showing his "true colors." His hand returns to Skrull form.
Falsworth threatens him by pointing out that the S.I.S. has no official policy on killing Skrulls.
She advises him to start talking.

At the Skrull base, Gravik’s soldiers question his decision to kill Pagon. Gravik takes a call
from Raava, who reports Ritson is out of surgery. Raava says he’ll send confirmation of the strike
once he’s awake. After the call is terminated, Gravik is attacked by his soldiers. They attempt
to kill him. However, Gravik’s Super Skrull abilities allow him to prevail. Gravik kills one of the
soldiers in front of a crowd of civilian Skrulls.

Fury arrives at a locked location but finds it compromised. Inside is G’iah. It’s the location
where episode two, "Promises," opened. Fury explains the location survived the WWII Nazi attack
on London and became a refuge for immigrants from the West Indies. He says, "The path of
struggle is steep. I feel a lot of strength when I’m over here." Fury brings up Talos. G’iah says she
ran away from Talos because she knew he would lose. Fury says Talos chose a life of struggle
and did not lose. However, Fury knows that G’iah survived being shot by Gravik. G’iah states
that Gravik has a few DNA samples, but not what he wanted: "the harvest."

G’iah says she has to bury Talos. Fury says to bring the body to Cilla. Police lights outside
signal it’s time for Fury to leave. He asks if G’iah will be alright. She replies that she’ll put on a
good face. Fury states he’s going to Finland. He asks if G’iah will be okay, and she says she’ll
"put on a good face."

Elsewhere, the "Daltons" find Falsworth looking through their microscope. She immediately
identifies them as Skrulls. She goes on to offer them "cake or death": either friendship or force.
They refuse to yield until her concealed soldiers have them at gunpoint. Falsworth presents the
plans for the Super Skrull machine. Soon the lab is being torched. The masculine Dalton breaks
out of cuffs and puts a gun on his feminine counterpart’s head. Falsworth summarily dispatches
him.

In a van, G’iah mourns over the body of Talos. She approaches Cilla’s house. After getting
no answer to her knock, she breaks the locked doorknob and enters. Inside, she draws a gun
and calls for "Professor Davis" but gets no response. She turns a corner and finds Cilla in the
kitchen, also with a gun. Cilla asks if Gravik has sent G’iah to kill her. G’iah surrenders and says
Fury said Cilla could help bury Talos.

Raava approaches a recovering Ritson. According to Raava, they can confirm the attack was
of Skrull origin thanks to corroborating evidence from Falsworth. Raava shows Ritson the Skrull
base at the Russian nuclear plant and states that they must neutralize the facility. Ritson says an
attack on Russian soil is tantamount to WWIII. Raava claims a preference for war over extinction,
which is what a Skrull invasion will mean.

Gravik contacts Fury by phone. According to Gravik, he’ll call off the U.S. attack on Russia
if Fury brings him "the harvest." He further advises Fury to bring iodine pills. After terminating
the call, Fury gets on a plane. On board, Rick Mason gives him new credentials and reveals that
the Helicarrier has been mothballed.

In the forest, Cilla and G’iah prepare a funeral pyre for Talos. G’iah says he deserves a military
procession. Cilla states Talos wasn’t much for pageantry. She asks if G’iah has the offering. G’iah
places a ring on the sheet-wrapped body. She states that it belonged to her mother. Since G’iah
doesn’t know the prayer, Cilla recites it. G’iah tells her father to travel well to the beyond.

Back at Cilla’s house, G’iah laments telling her father he was a failure. Cilla shares her last
statement to Fury pre-Snap with G’iah. The pair seem to be bonding until G’iah offends Cilla by
asking whether or not Fury ever felt comfortable when Cilla was in Skrull form. However, their
conversation is interrupted by incoming bullets. The pair fall back and pull on backpacks filled
with weapons. Together, they overcome the attacking soldiers.

At customs in Finland, Fury’s image and information are posted at each station. An old white
man passes through customs without trouble. Outside, the man is revealed to be Fury utilizing
the Widow’s Veil disguise. He gets in a car driven by Falsworth. When hip-hop begins playing
after she starts the car, Fury asks if they’re really doing this. Falsworth confirms that they are.
In another car, Cilla tells G’iah to be careful.

294 km from the Russian border, Fury asks Falsworth why "Rhodey" is in charge of the
operation. Falsworth says as active head of the S.I.S., she had the authority to do so. Fury reveals
Rhodey is a Skrull. Falsworth asks who isn’t these days. She wonders why Gravik would blow up
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his own people. Fury states that its leverage, with the attack to be called off if he surrenders "the
harvest." He further explains that nearly every Avenger spilled blood during the battle of Earth
in Avengers: Endgame, even Carol Danvers. Skrull agents were secretly sent in to collect DNA
samples. Gravik led this team. Fury believes this is where he got the idea for Super Skrulls to
begin with. Falsworth states Fury is responsible for "all this," and Fury says that’s why he came
back.

Fury and Falsworth abandon the car and continue to a gravestone marked "Col. Nicholas J.
Fury." Falsworth asks why Fury hasn’t called any of his "special friends." Fury says it’s personal
and thinks they can’t keep depending on superheroes to swoop in and save the day. Falsworth
says she thought Fury had another grave. Fury confirms he has several. He blows on the grave-
stone, which illuminates before rising and revealing a vial: the harvest.

Fury proceeds inside a nearby mausoleum. He pulls his leather jacket, eyepatch, and gun
from a device concealed inside. Then he calls someone (presumably Gravik) and says, "It’s time.
Let’s finish this."
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Home

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Wednesday July 26, 2023
Writer: Kyle Bradstreet, Brian Tucker
Director: Ali Selim
Show Stars: Samuel L. Jackson (Nick Fury), Ben Mendelsohn (Talos), Kingsley Ben-

Adir (Gravik), Killian Scott (Pagon), Samuel Adewunmi (Beto), Dermot
Mulroney (President Ritson), Richard Dormer (Agent Prescod), Emilia
Clarke (G’iah), Olivia Colman (Sonya Falsworth), Don Cheadle (James
’Rhodey’ Rhodes)

Guest Stars: Martin Freeman (Agent Everett Ross), Nisha Aaliya (Raava), Charlayne
Woodard (Priscilla), Uriel Emil (Poprischchin), Katie Finneran (Rosa),
Christopher McDonald (Chris Stearns), Lucy Newman-Williams (Joint
Chief Chairman), Irmena Chichikova (Kreega), Seeta Indrani (Shirley
Sagar), Anna Madeley (Pamela Lawton), Michael Epp (Ruben Steiner),
Augustina Seymour (Staffer #1), Richard Teverson (Chief of Staff),
Michael McKerracher (General Taylor)

Summary: All hope for humanity rests on Fury’s shoulders.

Varra AKA Priscilla Fury is at her home.
The bodies of the Skrull soldiers killed by
her and G’iah in the previous episode lit-
ter the floors. She answers a call on her
cell from Fury. She says it’s the first time
he’s called in years. He admits he’s dialed
many times but hasn’t been able to bring
himself to hit "send." Varra asks his lo-
cation and Fury says he’s too far to turn
back. Varra tells him he doesn’t have to
go if he doesn’t want. Fury terminates the
call.

A car pulls up to the Skrull compound,
located at an abandoned nuclear plant in Russia. The two guards fire upon the rolling vehicle.
After shooting it, the soldiers find the car is empty. Fury shoots both of them.

In London, "James Rhodes" and an Admiral meet with United States President Ritson. Ritson
is sitting in his hospital bed. "Rhodes" argues that Ritson should retaliate against Russia. But
the Admiral states that they need confirmation that it was indeed the Russians behind the crash.
"Rhodes" continues to insist that the Skrulls are working with the Russians.

An assistant enters and brings "Rhodes" real-time surveillance footage that shows Russian
tanks taking position on the borders of Finland and Ukraine. "Rhodes" tells Ritson he’s prepared
remarks for Ritson. He indicates satellite footage of the nuclear plant and provides it to Ritson
as proof of the Skrull invasion.

At the power plant, Fury finds many dead Skrulls. He coughs. He consults a beeping Geiger
counter, which beeps wildly. Then he works his way deeper into the nuclear plant. Meanwhile,
"Rhodes" gets a call from Sonya Falsworth. She tells "Rhodey" to get the President out of there,
as Fury is on his way. Falsworth states Fury has lost it, and tells "Rhodey" to move the president.
At the nuclear plant, Fury works his way deeper into the property, finally arriving at the Super
Skrull machine.

Fury concedes that he failed. He says after a few years of searching he knew there was no
other planet for the Skrulls. Fury says his part of the bargain was to build them a home. But
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he says it’s easier to save the lives of eight billion people than it is to change their hearts and
minds. "Even for Nick Fury." He further admits that he felt relief as he died during the Blip. Fury
continues that Gravik was the youngest Skrull on his team, and he feels that he should have
taught him never to give up. He continues that since he failed them he will give Gravik his desire:
the Harvest. He just wants Gravik to leave Earth.

Gravik suggests the radiation is eating Fury’s brain. Fury gives him the Avengers’ DNA sam-
ples. Then Fury collapses, coughing. At the hospital, Ritson takes a gun from a Secret Service
agent. Elsewhere, U.S. military forces hand off a "classified document." At the nuclear plant,
Gravik takes the Harvest and tests it, revealing DNA from many of the parties involved in the
climactic battle from Avengers: Endgame.

At the hospital, Falsworth holds a gun to "Rhodey’s" head and states that he really is a Skrull.
She takes his gun. Meanwhile, Gravik boots up the Super Skrull machine (with Fury still in
it) and steps in. Soon Gravik has all the powers of all those Avengers (and other superpowered
characters). He begins to beat on Fury, but Fury stops his fist. Then Fury’s arm becomes the
Hulk’s and he punches Gravik through the wall and into a smoke stack. Fury is revealed to be
G’iah.

At the hospital, the real Fury appears. Fury states that "Rhodey" is the Skrull. At the nuclear
plant, the two Skulls "shift arms." We see Groot arm, Korg arm, and even Drax arm. G’iah uses
Ghost powers to avoid a car Gravik throws at her. Gravik has Abomination ears. At the hospital,
Fury tells Ritson that "Rhodey" is a Skrull. Fury reveals Skrulls have kidnapped many world
officials (and other key players) and are keeping them in pods beneath the Skrull compound.
At the nuclear plant, Gravik and G’iah continue to clash. Elsewhere, a U.S. missile prepares to
launch. Fury tells Ritson he must not let the Skrulls win. At the nuclear plant, Gravik and G’iah
use "Captain Marvel powers" to take their battle into the clouds. G’iah uses Mantis powers to put
Gravik to sleep. He falls.

G’iah and Gravik continue to battle. Fury tells Ritson if he’s wrong about delaying the nuclear
strike, Fury can be sent to prison and Russia can be flattened. At the nuclear plant, Gravik
says G’iah is just like her father, and just like "them." G’iah blasts Gravik through the heart and
he dies. At the hospital, "Rhodey" takes Falsworth’s gun. But Fury shoots "Rhodey." The corpse
returns to Skrull form. Ritson asks for a phone and Falsworth hands it to him.

At the nuclear plant, G’iah releases the many humans being kept imprisoned by the Skrulls.
They include the broke from episode 1, Doctor Rosa Dalton, the real Colonel James Rhodes, and
Everett Ross. Ross asks Rhodes how long he’s been held. G’iah helps the human survivors leave
the building.

In London, Ritson prepares and delivers an address that is internationally broadcast. Ritson
speaks about the presence of the Skrulls. He says all off-world-born species are now classified
as enemy combatants. He states, "We know who you are. We know how to find you. And we will
kill every last one of you." Elsewhere, Fury arrives at Varra’s house and puts on his wedding
ring. Fury apologizes to Varra for not being there. Varra says she can handle herself. She says
she knows who she is when Fury isn’t there, but Varra says she knows who she is when he’s
not there. Fury asks for one more chance and says he’s leaving that night. Varra says this is
goodbye. Fury returns the ring to the vase and says Varra knows where to find him if she needs
him.

Meanwhile, Falsworth approaches G’iah in an alleyway. Falsworth says she hasn’t come for a
fight. She says the Skrulls need a leader. Falsworth says that she’ll give the Skrulls the resources
they need to weather the coming pressure from Ritson. G’iah asks if she’s doing it from the
kindness of her heart, and says her father made a similar deal. Falsworth says, "Let’s not repeat
the mistakes of Talos and Fury and keep love and friendship out of this. I will use you, and you
will use me, and together we will make our planet safe for both our people." Falsworth and G’iah
depart together.

Elsewhere, Fury arrives at a dark and empty field. He calls Ritson. Fury says he was relieved
Ritson made it out alive "until I saw you make that hateful-ass speech you made." Meanwhile,
Falsworth shows G’iah even more humans who are unconscious and under Skrull captivity.
Falsworth says, "This is how the enemy got so good." Meanwhile, Fury tells Ritson he took a bad
situation and made it worse, classifying this as "real one-term President stuff."

As Fury speaks to Ritson footage shows humans shooting "Chris Sterns" on the set of his
show. Another shooting takes place, and a human woman in a leadership position is murdered.
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Fury states Ritson has alienated the Skrulls who would support them and led to the death of
more innocent humans to boot. Another scene shows Shirley Sagar fighting soldiers. Fury tells
Ritson to call off the war. Ritson says that there’s only one way this ends and the "old Fury"
would have known that. He tells Fury to get the Skrulls off his planet.

Fury crosses a dark field towards a beam of light. Varra arrives. She approaches Fury. When
Fury calls her "Pricilla," Varra says she wants to use her birth name. Fury says the Kree are
prepared for peace talks. Varra says she never would have expected it. Fury tells Varra he needs
her help at the peace summit. Fury says they’re better together.

Varra says her work is on Earth. She returns to Skrull form. Varra tells Fury she loves him.
Fury and Varra kiss. Then they both board the ship.
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Actor Appearances

A
Chiraz Aïch . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (French President)
Nisha Aaliya . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0104 (Rhodey Skrull / Raava); 0106 (Raava)
James Adler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Security Man #1)
Cain Aiden. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Workman)
Electra Allen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Russian Passerby)
Michael Amariah . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (British Newscaster)
Nina Anderson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (British Reporter)
Mihai Arsene . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Drunk Russian)

B
Charlotte Baker . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Soren)
Jack Baldwin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Nigel’s MI6 Partner)
David Bark-Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Bob Fairbanks)
Alex Batareanu.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Faux Gate Guard 1)
Mark Bazeley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0102 (Victor Dalton); 0103 (Victor Dalton); 0105
(Victor Dalton)

Grace Boyle. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (White House Aid)

Kate Braithwaite . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Skrull Soren)

Meya Brumell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Diner Waitress)

Natallia Bulynia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Russian Mother)

Saverio Buono. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0102 (Italian Prime Minister)

Harry Burton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Submarine Captain)

C
Eugenia Caruso . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Taxi Driver)
Irmena Chichikova. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .5

0101 (Kreega); 0102 (Kreega); 0103 (Kreega); 0105
(Kreega); 0106 (Kreega)

Billy Clements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (La Selva Guard)

Tony Curran. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0101 (Derrik); 0105 (Derrik)

D
Lydia Depres . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Hostess)
Pavel Douglas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Older Man)

E
Uriel Emil. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0101 (Poprischchin); 0106 (Poprischchin)
Michael Epp . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0101 (Ruben Seiner); 0102 (Ruben Steiner); 0105
(Ruben Steiner); 0106 (Ruben Steiner)

F
O-T Fagbenle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Mason)
Katie Finneran . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0102 (Rosa); 0103 (Rosa); 0104 (Rosa); 0105 (Rosa);
0106 (Rosa)

Martin Freeman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0101 (Agent Everett Ross); 0106 (Agent Everett Ross)

G
Christopher Goh . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0102 (Jack Hyuk-Bin); 0103 (Jack Hyuk-Bin)
Jack Gouldbourne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0101 (Nuro); 0102 (Nuro); 0105 (Nuro)
Christian Anthony Greenaway . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (SIS Official 2)
Adriana Grigoriev . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Faux Gate Guard 2)

H
Paul Huntley-Thomas. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0102 (Business News Anchor)

I
Seeta Indrani . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0102 (Shirley Sagar); 0106 (Shirley Sagar)

J
Malcolm James. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (British News Presenter)
Giampiero Judica . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0102 (NATO Sec. Gen. Caspani); 0103 (NATO Sec.
Gen. Caspani)

K
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Irina Kara. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Russian Professional Woman)

Michael Keogh. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0104 (SAS Officer #1)

Vladimir Kolishkin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Butcher)

L
Mark Lewis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0101 (Zirksu); 0103 (Zirksu); 0105 (Zirksu)

M
Joe Macaulay. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (SIS Official 1)
James Macnaughton. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Pod Security Skrull)
Anna Madeley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0102 (Pamela Lawton); 0103 (Pamela Lawton); 0106
(Pamela Lawton)

Zsuzsa Magyar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Russian Bartender)

Jessica Martenson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Window Agent)

Bebe Massey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Young Russian Girl)

Tony McCarthy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0103 (Alien)

Christopher McDonald. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0103 (Chris Stearns); 0106 (Chris Stearns)

Michael McKerracher . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (General Taylor)

Tony Metcalfe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Male Surgeon)

Andy M Milligan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Russian Spy)

Marvin Montoute. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Shop Owner)

N
Lucy Newman-Williams. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Joint Chief Chairman)
Heidi Niemi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (K9 Guard)
Alasdair Noble. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Zachary Fairbanks)
Andrei Nova . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Russian Man)

P
Natasha Patel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Jogging Woman)
Ben Peel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (Brogan); 0102 (Brogan)
Lucas Persaud . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Young Skrull Gravik)
Jeska Pike . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Secret Service)

R
Osian Roberts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Mustached Man)
Alex Romashov . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Russian Soldier #1)

S
Peter Sandys-Clarke . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (London Banker)
Tom Scurr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Nurse #1)
Augustina Seymour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0102 (Staffer #1); 0106 (Staffer #1)
Alex Skarbek . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (FSB Commander #2)
Luke J I Smith . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Skrull Guard)
Simon Smith . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Finnish Man)
Cobie Smulders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0101 (Maria Hill); 0102 (Maria Hill); 0105 (Maria
Hill)

Juliet Stevenson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Maria Hill’s Mum)

Daniel Stockton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Businessman)

T
Richard Teverson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0104 (Chief Of Staff); 0106 (Chief of Staff)
Irena Tyshyna . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Fashionable Woman)

W
Anna Wilson-Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Female Surgeon)
Charlayne Woodard . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0102 (Priscilla); 0103 (Priscilla); 0104 (Priscilla); 0105
(Priscilla); 0106 (Priscilla)

Y
Ventsislav Yankov . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (FSB Commander); 0102 (FSB Commander)
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